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Independent Auditors' Re¡lort

'I'o the Members of the Board
Shanksvi lle-Stonycreek Schoo I Distr.ict
P.O. Box 128
1325 Cornerstone Road
Shanksville, PA 15560-0128

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governlnental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Shanksville-Stonycreek School District as of
and forthe year ended June 30,2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statcmcnts

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
alld maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of flrnancial statements that are
fi'ee from material rnisstatement, whether due to fi.aud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these hnancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to fìnancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by lnanagement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

Iu our opinion, the financial stateÍìlellts referred to above present failly, in all material respects, the lespective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each rnajor fund, and the aggregate
retrraining fund infornration of the Shanl<sville-Stonycreek School District as of June 30,2013, and the respective
cltal.rges in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereol, for the year then ended in accol'dance with
accounting plinciples generally accepted in the United States of America.

C)ther Matters

Recltt i r e cl Su ¡t ¡t I e nt en t a r¡t I nþrm af i on

Accounting principles genelally accepted in the United States of America require that the rnanagernent's discussion
and analysis and budgetary cornparison infonnation on pages 5 throLrgh ll and page 54, respectively, be presented
to supplerrent the basic financial statelnents. Such infbnnation, although not a part of the basic fìnancial statements,
is required by the Governnrental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of fiuancial
leporting for placing the basic fìnaucial statements in an appropriate operational, econornic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing
standarcls generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica, which consisted of inquiries of rnanagernent about the
methods of preparing the informatiotr and cornparing the infonnation lor consistency with management's I'esponses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other l<nowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
lìnancial statelnents. We do tlot expl'ess an opinion or provide any assul'ance on the infonnation because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide ally assuratlce.

Other Reporting Required by Goverttntenf AutliÍittg Standards

IIr accordance wifh Governntent Audiling Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 3,2014 ou our
consideration of Shanksville-Stonycreel< School District's intet'nal contlol over' 1ìnancial reporting and on our tests
ol'its compliance with celtain provisious ol'laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other lnatters,
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over' financial reporting and
colnliance and the t'esults of that testing, and not to plovide an opinion on internal control over financial repolting or
on conrpliance. 'l'hat report is au integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmenl Auditing
Støndards in cousidering Shanl<sville-Stonycreek School District's ilrternal control over financial reporting and
cornpliance.

f4ot o^^¡ CPÀ r OÞÀ..-,.o\*Å<.)' C
fntruPcPR & Associares, l).c,
Johnstown, Pennsylvania
January 3,2014



Management's Discussion and Analysis
Shønlcsa iIIe- S t o ny ueelc S cho oI District

2012-2013

The Managernent's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Shanksville-Stonycreek School District's (the School
District) financial performance provides an overall review of the School District's financial activities for the f iscal
year ended June 30,2013. l-he MD&A is to plovide reader íi'iendly insight into managernent's analysis of the aLrdit.
This MD&A looks at the district's fìnancial pelfolmance as a whole, although readers should review the
independent auditor's transmittal letter and notes to the financial statetnents to enhance their understanding of the
district's frnancial perforrnance. Certain conrparative infonnation between the current year and prior year is
rec¡uired to be presented.

Tliis discussion and analysis is part of the required suppleurentary infonnation specified in the Governrnental
Accounting Standalds Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statements - and A4anøgement's
Discus,tioncrndAnctl¡tsis-forStateandLocal GovernntenlsissuedinJunelggg. GASBStaternentNo.34requires
certaiu cornparative inforrnation to be presented between the cul'rent and the prior year and is cletailed hel'ein
accordingly.

Description of the School District

The Shanksville-Stonycleek School District is nestled along the slopes of the Allegheny Mountains in the central
part of Somerset County about eight miles northeast of Sornerset, Pennsylvania and 30 rniles northwest of
Cuurberland, Maryland. lt is comprised of the township o1' Stonycreek and the boroughs of Indian Lake and
Shanl<sville. The school district has a population of approximately 2,900 residents.

Much of the land is productively engaged in fanning. Lumbeling and strip mining ale impoltant cornponents of the
local economy. The alea has vast opportunities for the expansion of tourism and recreation in a multi-seasonal
climate. The Flight 93 National Memolial is also part of the district and is expected to have an impact on the local
econonly as well.

The Distlict's facility is contained within one building. The District has an enrollment of approximately 365 which
includes grades Pre-K through Grade 12.

The District empìoys 63 regular employees, with roughly 25 part-time substitutes. The teaching staff consists of 38
full-tirne professionals. Teachers in the District are mernbers of the Pennsylvania State Education Association
(PSEA) and the Shanksville-Stonycreek Education Association (SSEA), which is the representative bargaining unit.
The SSEA contract is clue to expire June 30,2014.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for the year ending June 30,20 l3 are as follows:

t District-wide net position increased $ 141,864

* l'otal fund balances ofall governrnental funds equaled $2,855,093

.:. Urrassigned general fund balance equaled 5644,396

+ Committed general fund balance equalecl $2,080,000. This amount was cornrnitted as follows:

* PSERS Retirernent
* TechnologyReplacernent
.:. Curriculum Enhancernent
* Post-Ernployment Benefits
.:. Debt Selvice

$400,000
$230,000
$200,000
$400,000
$850,000



Shanl<sville-Stonycreek School District
Mrtnugement's Discussiott nrtd Analysis (MD&A)

ù Capital Projects fund balance equaled $l 15,443

{. Debt Service fund balance equaled $l
.þ 'lotal general fund revenues exceeded budget by $355,966

+ Total general fund expenses were $ l, I 33,75 I under bLrdget

'l' l'he District's pt'oprietary fund/business-type actrvity (cafeteria) had an increase in net position of
s2,024

Long Term Issues and Commitments

't Lotrg Terrn Debt: Outstanding bond issues as of June 30,2013 include the Series of 2012, Series of
201 I , and the Series of 2009 with a cornbined total outstanding principal balance of $4,720,000.

* Long Ter'rn Debt also consists of the District's estimated shal'e of the refinanced Series of
2004 area vocational-technical school's general obligation bond. The District's share of the
balance outstanding at June 30,2013 is $419,153.

This annual report consists of three parts: mallagement's discussion and analysis (thís section), the basic fìnancial
statements and the required supplementaly information. Managernent's discussion and analysis is intended to serve
as an introdr¡ction to the District's basic financial statements.

"l'he District's basic financial statements include two types of staternents, which present different views of the
District. l'he first type of statcments ale the District-wide Financial Statements that provide both short-term and
Iong-teln.r infonnatiou about the Distlict's overall financial status on a full accrual basis of accounting. 1'he
renraining staternents are Fund Financial Statements that focus on individual parts of the District, reporting the
Distlict's operations in more detail than the District-wide financial statements,

The Goverumental fund statements indicate how the District financed its basic services such as regular and special
education. Proplietary fund statements offer financial infonnation about activities the District operates like a

business, such as its Food Service Proglarn. Fiduciary f'und statements provide information about financial
relationships where the School District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of othels to whom the
resources in question belong, For this School District, these are student activity funds.

The fìnancial staternents also include notes that explain some of the infornration in the statements, and provide rnore
detailed data.



Shan l<sville-Stonycreel< School District
Munugemenl's Discussiort urtd Attolysis (MD&A)

Figure A-l shows how the various parts of this annual l'eport are arranged and related to one another.

Figure A-l
Required componcnts of

Shanl<sville-Stonycreek School District's
Financial Iìeport

Managerneut's
Discussion and

Analysis

Surnmary Detaiì

Basic Financial
Statements

Required
Supplementary

Information

Govel'nnrent-
wide Financial

Statements

Fund Financial
Statements

Notes to the
Financial

Staternents



Shanksville-Stonycreek School District
Management's Discussi.on und Andysis (MD&A)

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the financial statements, including the portion of the District they

cover and the types of information they contain.

Figure A-2
Major Features of Shanksville-Stonycreek School District's

District-wide and Fund Financial Statements
District-Wide

Statements F und Financial Statements

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds

Scope Entire District (except
fiduciary funds)

The activities of the
District that are not
proprietary or fiduciary,
such as education,
administration and

community services

Activities the District
operate similar to
private business -
Food Services

Instances in which
the District
administers
resources on behalf
of someone else -
student activity
funds and private
Durþose trust funds

Required
financial
statements

Statement of net position
Staternent of activities

Balance Sheet

Statement of revenues,
expenditures, and

changes in fund balance

Statement of net
position
Statement of
revenues, expenses

and changes in net
position
Statement of cash

flows

Statement of
fiduciary net
position
Staternent of
changes in
f,rduciary net
position

Accounting
basis and
nteasurement
focus

Accrual accounting and

economic resoul'ces

focus

Modified accrual
accounting and current
financial resources focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Type of
asset/liability
information

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and

capital, and short-tenn
and long-term

Only assets expected to
be used up and liabilities
that come due during the
year or soon thereafter;
no capital assets or long-
term liabilities included

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and shoú-term and

long-term

All assets and

liabilities, both
short-term and

long-term

Type of
inflow-
outflow
information

All revenues and

expenses during year,
regardless of when cash

is received or paid

Revenues for which cash

is received during or
soon after the end ofthe
year; expenditures when
goods or services have
been received and
payment is due during
the year or soon
thereafter

All revenues and

expenses during year,
regardless of when
cash is received or
paid

All revenues and

expenses during
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid



Shan ksville-Stonycreek School District
Monagement's Discussion and Anølysis (MD&A)

District-Wide Financial Statements

The District-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader of the District's Annual Financial Report
with a broad overview of the financial activities in a rnanner similar to a private sector business. The District-wide
financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District's assets, deferred outflows of resources, Iiabilities, and
deferred inflows ofresources. All ofthe cun'ent year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of
Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Stalement of Aclivities repofts the change in net position. Net position - the difference between the District's
assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources - is one way of measuring
the District's financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are an
indicator of whether its financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively. To assess the District's overall
health one must also consider additional factors such as changes in enrollment, increases (decreases) to the District's
long-term debt, changes in the District's property tax base, changes in the State's funding of educational costs,
changes in the economy, and the condition of or need for improvements or expansion to existing school facilities.

In the District-wide financial statements, the District's activities are divided into two categories as follows:

Governmental Activities: Most of the District's basic services are included here, such as regular and
special education, maintenance and operation of plant services, transportation services and administrative
services. Property taxes, along with state formula aid, finance most of these activities. Fixed assets and
related debt are also suppofted by taxes and intergovernmental activities.

Business-type Activities: The District charges fees to cover the cost of certain services such as its food
service program.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the School District's operations. The School
District is required to provide detailed information for its "major" funds. Funds are accounting components the
District uses to keep tlack of specific sources of funding and spending on pafticular programs.

The District has three types of funds as follows:

Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the Districçwide financial statements. Most of the District's basic services are included in the governmental funds,
which generally focus on (l) how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted into cash inflows and
outflows and (2) balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Therefore, the governmental funds
statelnents provide a shorl-term view of the School's operations. They are reporled using an accounting lnethod
called modified accrual which measures amounts using only cash and other shod-term assets and liabilities
(receivables and payables) that will soon be converted to cash or will soon be paid with cash. Governmental fund
infolmation helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the District's programs. The District's governmental funds are the General Fund, the Capital
Projects Fund, and the Debt Service Fund.

Because the focus of fund financial statements is narrower than that of the District-wide statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar infonnation presented for governmental
activities in the District-wide Statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
District's near-term financing decisions. Reconciliations for both the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to
Statement of Net Position District-wide and the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities are provided to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.



Shan l<sville-Stonycreel< School District
Monagemenl's Discussion attd Analysis (MD&A)

Proprietary Funds are cornprised of the sel'vices for which the Distlict charges a fee. Proprietary funds are
reported on a full accrual basis of accounting in both the fund financial statemel'ìts and the District-wide financial
staterxents, A district's EnÍerprise Funcls (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities
but provide ntore detail and additional inforrnation, such as cash flows. 'lhe District currently has one enterprise
fund, its Food Selvice lìund.

Fiduciary Funds are the assets that the District serves as the trustee of, such as tlre student activity funds. The
Distl'ict is responsible for ensuring that the assets l'eported in these funds are used only for thei¡' intended purposes
and by those to whom the assets belong. The Distlict excludes these activities l}om the District-wide f,inancial
statelnents because it cannot use these assets to firrance its operations.

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

l-he District's financial position is a result of several financial transactions including the net results of activities, the
acquisition and paynrent ofdebt, the acc¡uisition and disposal ofcapital assets and the depreciation ofcapital assets.

IO



Shanksville-Stonycreek School District
Mønagement's Discussion and Analysis MD&A)

Figure A-3 summarizes the assets, liabilities, and net position of the District at June 30,2013.

Figure A-3
Net Position as of June 30, 2013 - @istrict-Wide)

Assets

Current Assets

Capital Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets,

net of Related Debt
Reshicted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Governmental Activities
2013 2012

$ 3,853,087

5,408,727

g_J251,81!

$__________q

s 1,216,970

4,679,969

$_1,821,819

$_________q

s 583,457

r15,444
2,667,074

q_t¡f5¿zt

* Restated - see Note 22 to the financial statements.

Current assets are largely comprised of cash and cash equivalents which represent approximately $3.1 million at June 30,2013. Capital assets represent land,
buildings and equipment less accumulated depreciation. Current liabilities are comprised primarily of accounts payable, accrued salaries and wages, and the
current portion of long-term liabilities, representing an approximate total of $1,100,000 at June 30,2013.

The decrease in total liabilities, ofFset by the decrease in capital assets resulted in an increase in net position of approximately $ 142,000 in fiscal year 2013 .

11

s 3,713,605 * 526,499
5,781,053 16,891

s__2,s51,6!8 $__{¡¡2q

$__________q $______q

s 1,062,107 $ 11,702

5,266,416 1,233

Q__9,328,sn $_-12¿9q

$_________q

s 358,099 $ 16,891

t34,396 0

2,733,640 * 13,564

gL22þ;135 $_lql5l

Business-Type
Activities

2013 2012

s 14,621

21,951

$_lÉÉzq

s______q

s 8,147

0

$___u4z

$______q

s 21,957

0

6,4'74

$ 28,431

Total School District
2013 2012

$ 3,879,586

5,425,618

$__2JAl¿94

$________q

s 1,228,672

4,680,102

$_j908ll!
s_________q

s 600,348

115,444

2,690,639

s 3,396,430

s 3,788,226

5,803,010

q_9,s21¿tÍ

q__________q

$ 1,070,254

5,266,416

q__q,3$,62q

q_________q

$ 380,056

134,396

2,740,114

s 3,254,566

Total %;o

Change
2012-t3

-2.980Â

0.00%

-6.75o/o

0.00"/r

4.360/0



Shanksville-Stonycreek School District
Management's Discussion ønd Anølysß (MD&A)

Figure A-4 summarizes the revenues, expenses, and changes in net position of the District for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Figure A-4
Changes in Government-wide Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30,2013

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities School District

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions

Capital Grants and Conhibutions

Total Program Revenues

General Revenue:

Properly and Other Taxes Levied
Grants, subsidies, contributions
Investment Eamings

Miscellaneous Income

Tra¡sfers

Total General Revenues

Expenses:

Instruction
Instructional Student Support

Admin and Financial Support Services

Operating a¡d Maintenance

ofPlant Services

Pupil Transportation
Student Activities
Interest on Long-term Debt
Food Service

Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

Beginning Net Position

Ending Net Position

20t3

$ 51,298 S 47,338 $ 102,930 $ 105,456 g 154,228
819,788 825,217 7t,023 92,071 gg0,gl1

1t4,884 133,693 0 0 114,994

985,970 1,006,309 113,953 197,527 l,l5g,g23

3,502,1353,311,521 003,502,135
7,636,342 1,637,934 0 0 1,636,342

3,131 2,962493,135
1,8763,102001,976

(73,399) (36,951) 73,399 36,951 0

5,070,085 4,918,569 73,403 36,959 5,143,499

3,388,4833,400,518003,399,493
493,032438,891 00493,032
887,61 I 863,7 45 0 0 987 ,611

558,957545,97200559,957
349,236 310,163 0 0 349,236
102,68998,20200102,699
136,201 t76,90700136,207

0 0 245,332 237,083 245,332

5,916,215 5,834,359 245,332 237,093 6,161,547

139,840 90,518 2,024 (12,597) 141,864

3,226,135 3,093,919 28,431 41,029 3,254,566

ï3;S:êJ2 $3]91,ß1 q__?91¡L ï__28Æ! ï];2!A39_

20t2 2013 2012 2013 2012 2012-13

The School District experienced an overall increase in net position of $141,864 for fiscal year 2013, with an overall increase in both revenues and expenditwes
compared to the prior year.

t2

s 152,794

901,348
t33,693

1,193,835 -2.g4%

3,371,527
t,637,934

2,970
3,102

0

4,955,527 3.79%

3,400,579
438,891

863,745

54s,972

310,163

98,202

t76,807
237,093

6,071,441 l.4B%

77,921

3,134,947

93?pÅþ!

Total%o
Chanse



Shanksville-Stonycreel< School District
Munagemenl's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

The tabìe below ref'lects the cost of program services and the rlet cost of those services aftel taking into account the
progralÌr reverlues and unrestricted state entitlements.

l'otal Cost

of Services

Net Cost

of Services

Total Cost

of Services

Net Cost

of Services

2013 2013 2012 2012

Program Expenses

Govemurental Acti vities :

Instruction

Instructional student support

,A,chn inistration

Maintenance

Pupil transportation

Student activities

Interest and fiscaì charges

Net progran expellses

Less: Unrestr'icted state entitlernents

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:

Food service

s 2,617,178

493,032

880,484

444,073

261,380

97,291

136,207

4,930,245

(1,636,342)

$ 3,293,903

3,400,578

438,891

863,7 45

545,972

310,163

98,202

176,801

$ 2,661,809

43 8,89 I

8s6,874

412,279

191,006

90,3 84

176,807

4,828,050

(1,631 ,934)

q_JJ9!l]!

136,201

$___ry_l!2_Þ

3,3 99,483

493,032

887,61 1

558,957

349,236

102,689

5,834,35 8

8 245,332 S 71,379 $ 23 7,083 S 49,556

Goverumental Activities
l'otal net cost of service increased rninirnally li'orn 2011-2012to2012-2013.

Business-Typc Activities
Food service rnanagement-the cafeteria continues to rely on subsidy froln the general fund for operations, The

dependency has decreased recently as fund balance has been leduced over titne to meet state requiretnents.

l3



Shan ksville-Stonycreek School District
M an øg ement's D is c us s io tt rut d An aly s is (M D &A)

Figure A-5 breaks out expenditures by function per the fund financial statements (general fund) with a comparison
to the prior year as well as current yeal budget variances.

Figure A-5

Expenditures by Function - Budget vs. Actual

Function Description

I 100 Regular Educational Plograms

1200 Special Programs

1300 VocationalEducation

1400 Other Instructional Programs

1700 Community/juniorcollegeprograms

I 800 Pre-kindergarten

2100 SupportServices'Pupil
2200 Support Services - Instructional Staff

2300 Support Services - Adrninistration

2400 Support Services - Pupil l{ealth

2500 Support Services - Business

2600 Operation and Maintenance

2700 StudentTlansportationServices

2900 Other Support Services

3200 StudentActivitics

3300 CommunityServices

3400 Scholarships and Awards

4000 Capital Outlay

5100 f)cbt Service

5200 lìund Transfers

5900 Budgetary Reserve

Total Expenditures

Iìevenues/Other fi nancing sources

Net Change

Actual
2012-13

Expenses

ll 2,303,894

445,084

290,858

20,447

3,025

79,255

t35,132

324,532

568,823

85,914

133,921

5r0,189

326,670

3,3 {i7

90,807

1,612

3,500

0

44,141

764,677

0

Actual
20tl-12

Expenses

$ 2,399,s79

396,624

29t,91t
I 0,81 7

s,37 5

64,053

133,514

308,656

554,553

83,345

129,198

506,7',|2

288,372

3,2t6
83,5 l6
3,950

4,000

0

33,5 58

763,682

0

Increase/

(Decrease)

From P/Y

$ (95,685)

48,460

(1,053)

9,630

(2,350)

15,202

1,618

r5,876

14,270

2,569

4,723

3,417

38,298

171

7,291

(2,338)

(500)

0

10,583

995

0

2012-13

Budset

$ 2,993,098

520,321

306,800

1 3,1 56

6,240

70,942

164,910

427,918

626,070

91,613

167,482

529,768

265,720

5,200

12r,813

4,888

2,080

20,800

46,800

832,000

52,000

7,269,619

s,825,210

q_Í44l!Ð

(Over)/

Under

Budeet

s 689,204

75,237

15,942

(7,2et)

3,215

(8,3 I 3)

29,778

103,386

57,247

5,699

3 3,561

19,579

(60,950)

1,813

3 l,006

3,276

(1,420)

20,800

2,659

67,323

52,000

1,133,751

3ss,966

6,1 35,868

6,181,17 6

$ 45,308

6,064,69t

5,997,489

$_-__w292)

7 1,177

r 83,687
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Shanl<svillc-Stonycreel< School District
Munugemenl's Discussion and Anollsis (MD&A)

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the coul'se of the year, the School District revises its budget as it attempts to deal with changes in revenues and
expenditures. State law requires that the budget be arnended to ensure that total expenditures do not exceed total
appropriations. A schedule showing the School District's detail budget arnorrnts cornpared with arnounts actually
paid and received is provided in Figule A-5. Significant variances in line iterns are discussed below.

A. Total General lr-und Revenues exceeded budget by $355,966.

L Budgetary estirnate differed significantly in the followirlg areas:

a. Local revenues:

i. PILT (Payrnent ln LieLr of Taxes) - $13,269 is due to unbudgeted reimbursement lor the Real
Estale Taxes lost due to the federal govelnmeut owning property that rnakes up the Flight 93
Memorial.

ii, Eartred Income'Iaxes - $16,085 is due to the fact that the earned income of the School Distlict
residents exceeded initial estimates. The budget figule f'or this particular revenue included a

large estirnated reduction due to the number of layoffs in the immediate area.

iii. Delinquent Real Estate Taxes - $53,085 is due to an actual collection of delinquent taxes in the
year Çompal'ed to conservative estirnates.

iv. Admissions - $5,398 was due to the unbudgeted revenues for athletic adrnissions.

v. Revenues from Local Governments - $53,480 was due to unbudgeted revenues generated

through contracted services with a neighboring school district.

vi. Refund: Previous Year Expenses - $4 1,690 was received as refund of payments fÌ'om previor.ts
years. This is not an itern that is budgeted for on a regular basis.

vii. Donations - $3,259 in donations were received above the originally budgeted $7,800.

B. Total General Fund Expenditules were under budget by $1,133,751,

l. The reduction of General Fund Expenditures, along with the increase in revenues, added $139,840 to
the fund balance compared to the reduction that was originally budgeted.

2. The budget variances in figure A-5 were due to the District not doing any year-end budgetary transfers
to balance the overages with the savings.

3. Salaries were under budget by 5424,660.

a. The District realized savings with not replacing two teachers in the Kindergarten and Physical
Education areas, but added I teacher aide to the Physical Education Depaltment.

b. The settled Collective llalgaining Agreement included a wage freeze on all teachers in the first
year of the agreement.

c. 'lhe District did not need to utilize substitutes at level that was budgeted.

d. 1'he District realizes savings in athletics in solne of the positions that ale normally paid.

4. Benefits were under budget by $552,418.

a. For retirernent, the District budgets at a higher rate to help build a balance for future years when
the rates are expected to spike.

b. l'he rnedical insurance prerniunrs were leduced lower than what was originally budgeted due to
new collective bargaining agreelnent that created premium savings moving to a new Qualified
Iìigh Deductible l-Iealthcare Plan,

t5



Shanksville-Stonycreek School District
Mønagement's Discussion and Anølysis (MD&A)

5 . Supplies and equipment were under budget by 537 ,961 .

a. The District has started to reduce the amount of supplies that are kept on hand since the District is

receiving discount pricing throughout the year. This reduces the amount of overstock that is
purchased and kept onsite.

b. Less new and replacement equipment was purchased due to the district effectively utilizing the

equipment already on hand.

6. Debt Payments and Fund Transfers were under budget by $121,982,

a. The Somerset County Technology Center debt was refinanced creating savings for the district.

b. The amount of general fund dollars used for debt service payments was reduced with the
utilization of funds within the Debt Service Fund.

Revenue - Fund Financials - General Fund

Tlre revenue for the school district comes from local, state, and federal sources. During the 2012-13 fiscal year,

$3,689,195 local funds (60%),52,346,086 state funds (38%) and $145,895 federal funds (2%) were recognizedby
the general fund.

Local funding is primarily from real estate taxes ($2,961,033) and earned income taxes ($250,085). Delinquenttaxes
in the amount of $209,480 were collected during the fiscal year.

Basic Education Subsidy of $1,463,913 makes up 62%o of the total grants, subsidies and contributions received.

Other significant receipts for the state include Special Education, 5229,431; Rental and Sinking Fund Subsidy,

$114,884; State Propefty Tax Reduction Allocation, $172,427; and Revenue for Social Security and Retirement
Payments, $25 1,148.

Technology

The importance of technology is always a part of the District's philosophy and planning. During fiscal year 2013,

the District began upgrading the Classroom For the Future laptops with less expensive Google Chromebooks.

Capital Assets

Figure A-6 illustrates changes in capital assets, net ofdepreciation, by asset type.

Figure A-6
Capital Assets Net of Depreciation

Govemmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities School District o/o Change

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2012-13
Land 524,792 g 24,792 $ 0 $ 0 g 24,192 S 24,792

Constructioninprogress 0 15,700 0 0 0 15,700

Site improvements 216,679 315,673 0 0 276,679 315,613
Buildings 4,769,37'7 5,029,316 0 0 4,769,377 5,029,316
Equiprnent and furniture 207,446 238.488 16.891 21.957 224337 260.445

rotal 8éJ!3Æ4 S5-6u,9@ $16-891 $21957 $5¿95-185 -SéÉAéeþ -6.21%

While capital additions for the District in2012-13 totaled $30,433, depreciation expense totaled $381,174 resulting
in a declease in net capital assets over prior year.
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Shanksville-Stonycreel< School District
Managenrcnf's Discussion und Analysis (MD&A)

Long-Tcrm Debt

Figure A-7 st¡mmarizes the chturge in long-telm debt for the year ended June 30,2013 compared to the year ended
June 30,2012,

Figure A-7
Outstauding Long-Term Debt

Total
School District

Total
Percentage

2013 2012 Change

Genelal Obligation Bonds, Series 2012 $ 1,315,000 $ 1,535,000 -14.33%
General Obligation Bonds, Selies 20 I I

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009

Technology Debt

l'otal

1,100,000 1,1 10,000 -0.90%
2,305,000 2,650,000 -13.02%

419,153 448,367 -6.52%

q_ry2J€ g_:lß;67 _10.s2%

Currently Known Facts, Decisions or Conditions

The School District does not expect significant growth in the neal future given the residential natr¡re of the local
eÇononry. The School District raised taxes in 20 1 I -2012 above the Act I index with a retirernent exception. The
School District also filed for Act I exceptions to raise taxes above the Act I hrdex for the 2012-2013 year and the
clrrrerrt 2013-2014 school year. As state funding continues to declease or be cornpletely elirninated, the School
District is evaluating the programs to determine whether or not to continue the proglam with local dollars, Proglams
lil<e Dual Enrolhnent and ìntervention services ale being rnaintained at sotîe level by local dollals since they have
proven to be a benefit to the academic process in the District.

Contacting the District's Financial Managcment

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens and taxpayers with a general overview of the School
District's fìnances. lf you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Business
Office, Shanksville-Stonycreek School Distlict.
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Shanl<sville-Stonycreeh School District
Statement of Net Position

Junc 30, 2013

Governmental

Activities
Business-Type

Activities Total
Assets

Current assets:

Cash and equivalents
Taxes receivable
Intelgovernrnental receivables
lnventories
Othel culrent assets

Total culrent assets

Noncurrent assets:

Land

Depreciable capital assets, net
Deferred bond costs, net

J.otal nonculrent assets

'I'otal assets

Deferred Outfklws of llesources

'I"otal assets and deferred outflows of resources

$ 3,102,820

515,522
219,295

15,253
191

3,853,087

24,192

5,253,502
130,433

5,408,721

9,261 ,814

0

s22gl",!.!1

See acconrpanying notes to the basic financial staterrents.

l9

12,163

0

8,469
5,267

0

26,499

0

16,891

U

16,891

43,390

0

$ 43,390

$ 3,1 1 5,583

515J22
221,164

20,520
197

3,879,586

24,792

5,270,393
130,433

5,425,618

9,305,204

0

ß 9,305,204



Shanksville-Stonycreek School District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Internal balances

Due to other governments

Accounts payable

Current portion of compensated absences

Accrued salaries and wages

Accrued interest payable

Payroll deductions and withholdings
Deferred revenues

Current portion of long-term liabilities

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable, net

Long-term portion of compensated absences

Other long-term fi nancing

Other post-employnrent benefits (OPEB)

Total noncurrent liabil ities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net ofdebt
Restricted for:

Debt service (expendable)

Capital projects (expendable)

Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,

and net position

583,457

I
115,443

2,667,074

3,365,975

$ 9,261,814

See accornpanying notes to the basic financial statements.

20

$ (5,506)
18,524

194,290

14,289

271,761

37,763

36,828
0

649,021

1,216,970

4,074,837
119,084

390,132

94,816

4,678,869

5,895,839

0

$ 5,506

0

0

1,327

0

0

0

4,869
0

$0
$ 18,524

194,290
15,616

271,7 61

37,763

36,828
4,869

649,021

1,228,612

4,074,837
120,317

390,t32
94,816

11,702

0

1,233

0

0

1,233

12,935

0

16,891

0

0

13,564

30,455

0__l¡r2q

4,680,102

5,908,774

0

600,348

I

115,443
2,680,638

3,396,430

fi 9,305,204



Governmental Activities:
Instruction
Instructional student support
Administration and hnancial

support
Operations and maintenance

ofplant
Pupil transportation
Srudent activities
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities 5,916,275

Business-Type Activities:
Food service 245,332

Total primary government S 6,167,541

General Revenues:
Taxes levied
Grants, subsidies and contributions, not restricted
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year, restated

Net position, end of year

Expenses

s 3,388,483
493,032

887,61 1

558,957
349,236
102,689
136,207

Shan ksville-Stonycreek School District
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Charges for
Services

s 4s,900
0

0

0

0

5,398
0

51,299

102,930

s 154,228

Operating Grants

and Contributions

724,805
0

7,127

0

87,856
0

0

Capital Grants

and Contributions

819,788

1t,023

q_____!29JU

0

0

0

I i4,884
0

0

0

Governmental

Activities

Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Chanqes in Net Position

s(2,617,778)
(493,032)

(880,484)

(444,073)
(261,380)

(e7.291)
(t36,201)

(4,930,245)

0

(4,930,245)

3,502,135
1,636,342

3,i3 I
1,876

(73,399)

5,070,085

139,840

3,226,735

s 3,36s,975

114,884

0

Business-Type

Activities

q___Jl$1

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements-

2l

0

0

0

0

(7 r,379)

(7 t,379)

0

0

4
0

73,399

73,403

2,024

28,431

$___!!lÐ

Total

$ (2,617,778)
(493,032)

(880,484)

(444,073)
(261 ,3 80)

(91,291)
(136,201)

(4,930,245)

(7 1,37e)

(5,001,624)

3,502,135
1,636,342

3,1 35

1,876
0

5,143,488

141,864

3,254,566

$_ë2É4iq

0

0



Shan l<sville-Stonycreek School District
Balance Shcet

Govern¡nental Funds
June 30, 2013

General

Fund

Major Fund

Debt Service

Fund

Non-Major Fund

Capital Projects

Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Taxes leceivable
Due from other funds
Due from other govelnrnents

Inventories

Other current assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities

Due to other funds

Due to othel goveruurents

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits

Payroll deductions and withìrolding

Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fuud lìalance
Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Unassigned

Total l'und balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

s 2,978,s99
515 5??

14,283

219,295
15,253

197

ï:l!l!12

$0
18,524

194,290

211 ,161
36,828

482,097

1,003,500

15,253

0

2,080,000

644,396

2,',739,649

ï:l!]]12

s 124,220

0

0

0

0

0

$ 3,1 02,820

5t5,522
14,283

219,295

15,253

197

I

0

0

0

0

0

Ð____J21229 S__l,gÉæZq

0s
0

0

0

0

0

0

I 15,443

0

0

$ 8,771

18,524

194,290

21 | ,161

36,828
482,097

1,012,217

15,253

I t 5,444
2,090,000

644,396

8,711

0

0

0

0

0

8.77'7

0

1

0

0

115.443 2,855,093

$ 3,867,370124,220

See accourpanying notes to the basic financial statenrents.
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Shanl<sville-Stonycreel< School District
Reconciliation of the Gover¡rmental Funds Balance Sheet

To the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2013

Total fund balauce - governmental funds

A¡nounts rcported fbr governrnental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not |eported as assets in
governmental f'unds. The cost of the assets is $10,875,43 I and
the accurnulated depreciation is $5,597,137.

Property taxes receivable will be collected in the future, but
are not available soon enouglr to pay for the current peliod's
expenditures and therefore are defered in the funds.

Boud issuance costs are expensed in the year of issue in the
funds. Flowever, on the government-wide financial statemetlts
these costs are deferred and amoltized over the term of the
bond issue. Bond costs ale $206,388 net of accnrnulated
arnortization of $75,955.

Long-tern.r liabilities are llot due and payable in the current
peliod and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
[,ong-terrn liabilities at yeal' end consist of:

s 2,855,093

5,278,294

482,097

130,433

(s.319.942)

$,-3,,,3i5,975

Bonds payable
Unar¡ortized bond discounts
Unarnol'tized bond prenriurns
Accrued interest payable
Cornpensated absences
Technology Center debt
OPEB obligation

Net position of governmental activities

$(4,720,000)
47,542

(22,379)
(37,763)

(133,373)
(419,153)

(94,816)

See accornpanying notes to the lrasic financial statelxents.
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Shanksville-Stonycreeh School District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures atrd Changes in Fund llalances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

General

Fund

Major Fund

Debt Service

Fund

Non-Major Fund

CapitalProjects
Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds
Ilevenues

Local sources

State sources

Federal soul'ces

Total revenues

Expenditu res

Instruction
Support services

Non-iustructional services

Debt service (principal and interest)

'l'otal expenditures

ìllxcess of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Interfund transfers

Total other financing soulces (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning ofyear

Fund balance, end ofyear

10,789

809,985 (699,459) (10,7',l1) gg 755

$ 3,689, I 95

2,346,086

145,895

6,181,116

3,142,563
2,08 8,568

95,919

5,37 1 ,r91

$ l8
0

0

s 3,689,214
2,346,086

145,895

6,1 8 1,1 95

3,142,563
2,099,357

95,919

7 43,601

6,081,440

I

0

0

t8I

0

0

0

699,460

699,460

0

r 0,789

0

0

(764,671) 684,258

(7 64,677) 684,258

020 (73,399)

(13,399)

26,356

2,929,731

$ 2,8ss,093

1.020

45,308

2,694,341

8 2,73e,649

(r5,20r)

15,202

(3,75 r)

194119

115.443

See accornpanying notes to the basic financial statellents.
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Shanksville-Stonycreel< School District
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expcnditures and

Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Total net change in fund balance - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governrnental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciatiorr
expense, This is the arnount by which depreciation expense
exceeded capital outlays in the culreut period.

$ 26,356

(34s,67 s)

(10,043)

3,180

(26,340)

(26,6st)

(39,536)

Capital outlays
Depreciation expense

$ 30,433
(376.1 08)

Because sorne property taxes will not be collected for several
rnonths after the Distl'ict's year end, they are not considered as

"available" revenues in the governmental f'unds. Defen'ed tax
revenues decreased by this amount this year.

Interest on long-terrn debt is recognized in the governmental
funds when it is due. In the statement of activities, expense is

recognized as intel'est accrues, Accrued interest expense
decreased by this amount this year.

In the governmental funds, cornpensated absences are

rneasuled by the amounts used. The statement of activities
nleasures by the arrount earned. The liability for compensated
absences increased by this amount this year.

Governmental l'unds repon bond issuance costs as

expenclitures in the year of issuance, whereas these costs are

defen'ed and arnortized over the tenn of the bond issue in the
statement of activities. This is the amount of the arnortized
costs in the current period.

Post-employment benelìts are recognized as expenditur'es in
the govemmental funds when they are paid. In the staternent
of activities, post-employrnent bene{its are recogr.rized as

expellses whe n incurred. This alrount represents the
difference.
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Shanksville-Stonycreek School District
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30' 2013

The proceeds and principal payments on long-terrn debt
provide and consume current financial resources of
governmental funds, respectively. However, they respectively
increase or reduce long-term liabilities on the statement of net
position. Further, the effect of bond discounts and pretniums
are reported in the funds in the year of issue but are deferred

and arnoftized in the statement of activities. The effect is

shown below:

Bond principal payments $575,000
Technology Center principal payments 29,214
Amortization of discounts (8,984)

Accretion of bond premium 5.017

Refund of prior year expenditures represents current financial
sources in the fund financial statements. However, in the

staternent of activities, this replesents a prior year adjustment

to net position.

Change in net position of governmental activities

600,247

(41.698)

s 139.840

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Shanksville-Stonycreek School District
Statemcnt of Net Position

Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2013

Food

Service
Assets

Cun'ent assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Due ÍÌ"orn otlrel governrneuts

Inventory

Total current assets

Nolrcurrent assets:

Machinely and equipment, net

Total noncurrent assets

'lotal assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total assets and deferred outflows ofresources

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Due to other funds

Defen'ed revenues

Current portion of compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities :

Lollg-telrn portion of cornpensated absences

l-otal noncurrent I iabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred lnflows of Resources

Net Position
Invested in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

s 12,763

8,469

5,267

26,499

I 6,891

16,891

43,390

$ 43,390

$ 5,506

4,969

1,327

11,702

1,233

1,233

t2,935

0

16,891

13,564

30,455

$"__1i¿2q
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Shan l<sville-Stonycreek School District
Staternent of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Food

Service
Operating revenues

Food service revenue

Total operating l'evenues

Operating expenses

Salaries

Ernployee benefits
Purchased property services

Other purchased service

Supplies

Depreciation

Dues and fees

'ì'otal operatiltg expeltses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating rcvcnues (expenses)

Earnings on investnrents

State sources

Federal soul'ces

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Incorne (loss) before transfers

Contributions and transfers
Transfèrs in (out)

Change in net position

'lotal net position, begrnning of year

Total net position, end ofyear

$ 102,930

102,930

67,688
7 4,099

6,t01
642

90, I 88

5,066

1,548

24s,3]2

(142,402)

4

5,557

65,466

71,027

(7 t ,37 s)

73,399

2,024

28,431

$ 30,455

See accornpanying notes to the basic
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Shan l<sville-Stonycreel< School District
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Endcd June 30, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received fi'om users

Cash payments to eurployees for services

Cash paynents to sLrppliers for goods and services

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
State sources

Federal soul'ces

Transfers in

Net cash provided by (usecl for) non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Earnings on investrnents

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning o1'year

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofyear

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used
for) operating activities:

Operating incorne (loss)

Adjustrnents to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for):

Depreciation
(lncrease) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in advances fi'om other funds

lncrease (decrease) in deferred revenue

'I'otal adjustments

Net cash provided by (Lrsed for) operating activities

See accompanying notes to

Food

Service

s 102,692

(63,661)

(113,648)

(134,617)

5 750

65,425

13,399

t44,574

9,961

2,902

gi2ts1

s (142,402)

5,066
(1,070)

2,560
1,461

(23 8)

7,785

qf1!4q"

the
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Shanksville-Stonycreek School District
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2013

Agency
Fund

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total assets and deferred outflows ofresources

Liabilities
Due to students

Total liabilities

Deferred lnflows of Resources

Net Position

Total liabilities, defened inflows of resources,

and net position

$ 32,598

32,s98

$_l?J9q

$ 32,598

32,598

$ëé9!

See accornpanying notes to the basic financial statetnents.
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Shanl<svillc-Stonycreek School I)istrict
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

l. Description of School District and Reporting Entity

The Shanl<sville-Stonycreek School District is a Local Education Agency of the third class, governed by a nine-
tnember publicly elected board, located in Somerset County, Pennsylvania. The District provides educational
selvices to approximately 500 students from Shanl<sville Borough, Indian Lake Bolough and Stonycreel<
Township. The Distl'ict's facility is contained within one building. The Distlict also participates in a local area
vocational/technical school with various other districts.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary governnlent, cornponent units and othel' organizations that are
included to ensule that the basic financial statements of the School District are not misleading. The prinrary
governrnent consists ofall funds, departrnents, boards and agencies that are not legally separate fì'om the School
Distl'ict. For Shanksville-Stonycleek School District, this includes general operations, food selvice, and student
related activities of the School District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the School District is financially accountable or
other organizations whose nature and significant relationship with the School District are such that exclusion
would cause the School District's financial staternents to be rnisleading. Financial accountability is defined as

the appointrnent of a voting majority of the colnponent unit's board, and (l) either the School Distlict's ability
to impose its will on the organization or (2) there is potential fbr the organization to provide a financial benefit
to or irnpose a financial burden on the School District, The School District has no cornponent units.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial stater¡ents of the School District have been prepared in conforrnity with generally accepted

accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to local govenlulental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the aocepted standard-setting body for establishing govemmental accounting and
financial principles. The rrrore significant of these accounting policies are described below.

A. Basis of Presentation

The School District's basic financial statements consist of governrrrent-wide statemel'ìts, including a

staternent of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a rnore
detailed level ol' financial information.

Governlnent-wide Financial Statemellts

The statement of net position and the statenlellt of activities display inforrnation about the School District
as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the prirnary governlnent, except for
fiduciary funds.
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Shan l<sville-Stonycreeh School I)istrict
Notes to Financial State¡nents

June 30, 2013

'Ihe staternent of net position presents the financial condition of the govelnrnental and business-type
activities of the School District at year end. The staternent of activities presents a cornparison between
direct expeuses and program l'evellues l'or each prograrn or function of the School District's governmental
and business-type activities. Direct expellses are those that ale specilically associated with a seLvice,
prograln or departtnetrt and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Plograrn revenues
include charges paid by tlre recipient of goods and services oflered by the program, grants and
contributions that are restricted to rneeting the operational or capital lequirernents of a particular progratn,
Revcnues which are not classified as proglam l"evenues ale presented as general revenues of the School
District. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which eaclr
busiuess segment or governmental fuuction is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the
School District.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial staternellts are also provided in the report for all governrnental funds, proprietary funds, and
the fiduciary funds of the School District. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate colurnns in the fund statements. Non-rnajor funds are aggregated
and presented in a single column. Fiducialy funds are reported by fund type.

B. Fund Accounting

l'he School Distlict uses funds to lraintain its financial lecord during the year. A fund is defined as a fiscal
and accounting entity with a self balancing set of accounts. There ale three categories of funds:
governmental, ploprietary and fi duciary.

Governmental lìunds

Govelnrnental funds are those tlrrough which r.nost govemlnental functious typically are fìnanced.
Governrnental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources.
Expendable assets are assignecl to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which tlrey
may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigncd to the fund from which they will be paid. The
diffelence between governnlental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are
the School District's nrajor govelnmeutal funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the operating fund of the School District and is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund - Accounts for resources accurnulated to provide for payrnent of general long-term debt
principal and interest,

The other governmental funds of the School District account for grants and other l'esources whose use is
restricted to a particular purpose.

Proprietar.v Funds

Proprietary funds focus on the detennination ofnet position, changes in net position and cash flows and are

classified as either intemal service or entelprise funds. Inter'nal sel'vice finds account fol the financing of
services provided by one deparh.nent or agency to other departments or agencies of the School District.
There are no intenral selvice funds. Enterprise funds rnay be used to account for any activity for which a
fee is chat'ged to external users lòr goods and services. The following is the School District's rnajor
enterplise fund:
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Shanksville-Stonycreel< School District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2013

F'ood Selvice Fund -'l'his fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the food service opelation
of the School District.

Fiduciary Fund

Iìiduciary fìrnd leporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The ficluciary fund category
is split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investrnent trust funds, private-purpose trust funds and
agency funds, Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the School District under a trust
agl'eemellt for individuals, private organizations, or other governments and are therefore not available to
suppoft the School District's own prograurs. The School District has no private purpose tlust funds. The
agency fund is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of lesults of
operations. The School Distlict's agency fund accounts for those student activity programs which have
student participation in the activity and have students involved in the managernent of the program.

C. Measuremellt Focus

Govemrnent-wide Financial Staternents

Governnrent-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurelnent focus. All
assets, defet't'ed outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources associated with the
operation of the School Distlict are inclLlded on the statement of net position.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statenrents ale accounted for using a flow of currelìt fìnancial resources rneasurement focus.
With this measurerrel'rt focus, only cul'l'ent assets and current liabilities generally are included on the
balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditules and changes in fund balauces l'eports on the
sources (i.e. revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i,e. expenditures and other financing uses) of
current financial resources. This approach differs from the manllel'in which the governmental activities of
tlte government-wide f'inancial statements are prepared. Governlnental fund financial statements therefore
include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-
wide staternents and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the governlnellt-wide statelnents, the proplietary fund is accounted for on a flow of economic
resources l.neasul'elnent focus. All assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of
lesources associatecl with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net position. The
statelnent ofchanges in fund net position presents increases (i.e. revenues) and decreases (i.e. expenses) in
net total assets. 'l'he statement of cash fìows provides inlbrmation about how the School District finances
and nreets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

Proprietary fund types distinguish operating l'evenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result frorn providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connectioll with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues of the
Food Service fund are charges for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the
cost of sales and services and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition ale reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Fiducialy funds are leported using the econonlic resoul'ces uleasurerneut focus.
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Shanl<sville-Stonycreeh School District
Notcs to Financial Staterne¡rts

June 30, 2013

D. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statelnents. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the acclual basis of
accounting. Governmental funds use the rnodified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary and liduciary
funds also use tl.re accrual basis of accounting. Diffelences in the accrual and the rnodified accrual basis of
accounting arise in the recognition ofrevenue, the recording ofdeferred revenue, and in the presentation of
expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting fi'om exchange transactions, in which each parly gives and receives essentially equal
value, is recol'ded on the acclual basis when the exchange takes place. On a rnodified accrual basis,
l'evenue is recorded in the Íiscal year in which the resources are rneasurable and become available.
Available tneaus that the resonrces will be collected within the currellt fiscal year or are expected to be
collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the curlent f,rscal year. For the School
District, available means expected to be received within sixty days of fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal value
ìn return, include income taxes, property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations, Revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the liscal year for which the taxes are levied (see Note 5). Revenue frorn grants,
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirernents have been
satisfìed. Eligibility requilenrents include tirning requirernerrts, which specify the year when the resources
are required to be used or the year when use is fìrst permitted; matching requirements, in which the School
District must provide local resources to be used for a specifìed purpose; and expenditure requirernents, in
which the lesources are provided to the School District on a reimbursement basis. On a rnodified accrual
basis, l'evenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measulable and
available alyear end: property taxes available as an advance, interest, tuition, grants, fees and rentals.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Defeued revenue on the govet'uurent-wide fínancial staternents includes grants and entitlernents received
bcfore the cligibility t'equil'ernents were tìlet.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not lre collected within the available
period (propelty taxes) have also been reported as defelred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis ofaccounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.

J'he ureasurement f'ocus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally lecognized in the accounting peliod in
which the related fund liability is inculred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and
atnortization, are not recognized in governrnental funds.
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Shanlcsville-Stonycreeh School District
Notes to Financial Staternents

June 30, 2013

E. Budgetary Data

An opelating budget is adopted eacl.ì year for the General Fund on a modified accrual basis of accounting.

The Pennsylvania Scltool Code dictates specific procedures relative to adoption of the School District's
budget and repofting of its financial statements, specifically:

The School District, before levying annual school taxes, is required to prepare an operating budget for the
succeeding fiscal year.

The School District is required to adopt a proposed budget at least thirty (30) days prior to adoption of the
annual budget. The proposed budget shall be printed ol otherwise made available for public inspection to
all persons and shall be made available for duplication to any person, orl request, at least twenty (20) days
prior to the date set for the adoption of the budget. Final action shall not be taken on the proposed budget
until after ten (10) days ofpublic notice.

The Board of Directors may rnake transfers of filnds appropliated to any particular item of expenditure by
legislative action. An affirmative vote of two-thirds of'all rnernbers of the board is requir'ed. The arnounts
t'eported as the original budgeted arrounts in the bLrdgetary statements reflect the amounts in the certificate
when the original appropriations were adopted, 'l'he amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the
budgetary staterxents reflect the alnounts in the final amended certilicate issued during fiscal year 2013,

Fund balances in budgetary funds may be appropriated based on resolutions passed by the Board ol'
Education, which authorized the School District to rnake expenditures. Appropriations lapse at the end of
the fiscal peliod. In order to preserve a portion of an appropriation for which an expenditure has been

committed by a purchase order contlact or other forrn of cornmitrnent, an encumbrance is recorded.

Included in the General Fund budget are program budgets as presclibed by the State and Federal agencies

funding the proglarn. These budgets are approved on a program by ploglarn basis by the State or Federal
funding agency.

An Enterprise fund budget is not adopted; however, a formal budget is prepared and approved by
rnanageurent and expenditures are controlled on the basis ofthis budget.

F. Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for servìces that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 20 3, are recorded as

prepaid itenrs using the consurnption method. A current asset for the prepard amount is recorded at the
time of the purchase and an expenditure/expense is reported in the year in which services ale consutned.

lnventory

On governrnent-wide financial statenlents inventories are presented atthe lower of cost or marl<et on a first-
in, first-out basis and are expensed when used.

Inventories in governurental funds are stated at cost by the fir'st-in, first-out method and consist of supplies
held for consurnption. The purchase rnethod is used to account for inventories. Under the purchase method,
inventories are recorded as an expenditure when pulchased; however, an estimated value of inventol'ies
($15,253) is lepolted as an asset in the General Fund. The inventories in the General Fund are equally
offset by nonspendable fund balance which indicates they do not constitute "available sperrding resources"
even though they are a component ofnet current assets.

G.
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Shanl<sville-Stonycreek School District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

A physical inventory of the Food Service Fund food and supplies was taken as of June 30,2013. The
inventory consisted of governrnent donated cornmodities which are valued at estimated fair rnarket value,
and purchased comrnodities and supplies, both valued at cost using first-in, first-out (FIFO) rnethod, Any
unused comntodities donated by tlre fedelal govelnrnent at June 30,2013 are leported as defen'ed revenue.

H. Capital Assets

General capital assets result fr"om expenditures in the governrnental funds. 'l'hese assets are repolted in the
governmental activities column of the govelnrnent-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the
fund financial statetnents. Capital assets used by the proprietary fund are reported in both the business-type
activities colutnn on the govelnment-wide statement of net position and in the fund IÌnancial statelneltts.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estirnated historical cost) and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recol'ded at their fair market values as of the date
I'eceived. 'l'he School District rnaintains a capitalization threshold of fifteen hundred ($1,500) dollals.
The School District does not possess any infrastructure. Irnprovernents are capitalized; the costs of
norlnal trraintenance and repairs that do not add to the value ofthe asset or rnaterially extend an asset's
lifè ale not capitalized.

All reported capital assets except for land and construction in pl'ogress are depreciated. hnprovements
are dept'eciated over the renraining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Descriotion Estirrated Lives

Site Inrplovements
Buildings and hnprovements
Furniture and Equipment

l5-20years
20 - 50 years

3 - 20 years

I. Bond Issue Costs

The costs incurred by the District to issue the General Obligation Bonds have been recorded as a deferred
asset that is being amortized ovel the life of the related bonds using a straight-line basis of amortization.

Original Issue Discounts and Premiums

Bond prerniums and discounts are reported as direct adjustments to the face amount of the bond and ale
deferred and amortized overthe lifè of the lrond usingthe straiglrt-line method of amortization.

Ileceivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lendingiborrowing arrangenents olrtstanding at the
end ofthe fiscal year are referred to as either "due tolfi'om other funds" (i.e. the current poltion ofinterfund
loans) or "advances tolfi'orn other funds" (i.e. the non-current poltion of interfund loans). Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
govenlment-wide lìnancial statements as "internal balances." In governmental fund financial statements,
aclvances between funds ale offset by an amount reported as nonspendable fund balance to indicate that
they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resourçes.

All receivables are determined to be collectible, and no allowance has been established.

J.

K.
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Receivables frorn aud payables to external palties are repolted separately and ar'e not offset in the
proprietary fitnd fiuancial statelrents and business-type activities of the government-wide financial
statelrents, unless a right ofoffset exists,

Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-terrn obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statelnents, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-terr-n obligations payable frorn proprietary funds
are reported on the proprietary fund financial statemeuts.

In getreral, govenllîental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incun'ed, are paid in a timely
Inannet' and in full froln current financial resoul'ces, are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
claims and judgrnents, colnpensated absences, special terrnination benefits and contractually required
pension contributions that will be paid from governrnental funds are reported as a liability in the fund
financial statelnents only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Bonds and
notes are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of lìesources

Delèrred outflows of resources represent the current consumption of net assets that is applicable to a future
reporting period. The District currently reports no deferred outflows of resources.

l)efeued inflows of l'esources repl'esent the culrent acquisilion of net assets that is applicable to a future
reporting period. The District culrently l'eports no deferred inflows of resources.

N. Fund Balance Classification

Beginrring with fiscal year 2011, the District implernented GASB Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance
Reporling and Governntentql Fund Tjtpe Definitions." 'l'his Statement provides more clearly defi¡led fund
balance categories to make the nature and extent ofthe constraints placed on a government's fund balances
rnore transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

. Nonspendable Fund Balance - amounts that are not in nonspendable forrn (such as inventory or
prepaid items) or are required to be maintained intact.

. Restricted Fund Balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as

grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of governrnent), through constitutional provisions, or by
enabling legislation.

. Committed F-und Balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by the District itsetf, using its
highest level of decision-making authority (i.e., School Board). To be reported as cornmitted,
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the District takes the sarne highest level action
to remove ol change the constraint.

' Assigned Funcl Balance - ar-nourlts the Distlict intends to use for a specifrc purpose. Intent can be

expressed by the School board or by an official or body to which the School Boald delegates the
authority.

. Unassigned Fund llalance - alnoullts
reported only iu the general fund.

that are available fol any purpose, Positive amounts are
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As of June 30,2013, fund balance components, other than unassigned, consist of the following:

General Fund:
Inventory
Future retirement costs
Technology replacement
Curiculum enhancement
Post-employment benefi ts

Debt service
Debt Service Fund
CapitalProjects Fund

Total

Nonspendable

$ 15,253
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

$11253

Restricted

0
0

0
0
0
0
1

11s.443
s1r5.444

Committed

$0
400,000
230,000
200,000
400,000
850,000

0

0

$2.080.000

The School Board establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by resolution of the

board. A fund balance commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a commitment of the

fund. Assigned fund balance is established by the Business Manager and/or Superintendent as delegated by
the School Board.

The District would typically use Restricted fund balances frrst, followed by Comrnitted resources, and then

Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend

Unassigned resources f,rrst to defer the use ofthese other classified funds.

O. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and

deferred inflows of resources. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital
assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances ofany borrowings used for the

acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there

are limitations imposed on its use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the School District or
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use

restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The govelnment-wide statelnent of net position reports $115,444 of restricted net position, of which
$115,443 is restricted by enabling legislation for Capital Projects and $1 by bond indenture for Debt
Service.

P. Estimates

The preparation of financial staternents in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estirnates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.
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a. Pension Plan

SLrbstantially all lull-time and part-time employees of the District participate in a cost-sharing multiple
etrrployer defìlled beneÍìt pension plan. GASB Staternent No.27, Accounting.fitr Pensions by State ancl
Local Governntenlctl EmpÌc4,e¡'s, requiles an ernployer that palticipates in such a plan to recognize annual
petlsion expenditures ol' expellses equal to its contractually requiled contributions, subject to the modified
acct'ual basis of accounting in governrnental funds. (That is, if contributions frorn governrnental funds are
required but not rnade, the difference would not be reported as an expenditure but as a long-telrn liability if
not payable with expendable, available financial lesources.) 'l-he District made all required contributions
for the year ended June 30, 2013, and has recognized them as expenditures and expenses in the
govelnmental and proprietary funds, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Under Section 440.1 of the Public School Code of 1949, as amended, the District is pennitted to invest its
monies as follows:

Obligations of (a) the United States of America ol any of its agencies ol instrL¡rnentalities bacl<ed
by the l'ull faith and credit of the United States of America, (b) the Conl.nonwealth of
Petrrrsylvania or any of its agencies ol instrurnentalities bacl<ed by the full faith and credit of the
Comtnouwealth, or (c) any polrtical subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of
its agencies or instrurnentalities bacl<ed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision.

Deposits in savings or tirne deposits or share accounts of institutiolls insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation to the extent that such accounts al'e so insured and, for any
altloullts above the insured ntaxitnutn, provided that approved collateral as provided by law is
pledged by the depository.

The deposit and investrnent policy ofthe school distl'ict adheres to state statutes and prudent business plactice.
Cash equivalents are defined as short-tertn, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to l<nown
attlotluts of cash and include investnrents with original r¡aturities of three months or less. Cash and cash
equivalents consist of demand deposits at local financial institutions, lroney market mutual fuud investrnents
with Pennsylvania Local Government lnvestrnent Trust (PLGIT) and the Pennsylvania School District Liquid
Asset Fund (PSDI-AF), and cash on hand of $300. l'he market values of deposits are equal to the cost of the
deposits. The investments are stated at cost inclLrcling accrued intelest which approximates rnarl<et value.

'l'he Distlict invests in the Pennsylvania School Distl'ict l.iquid Asset Fund (PSDLAF) and the Pennsylvania
Local Governnrent Investment'Iì"ust (PLGIT) as authorized by tlre Board. PSDLAF was established to enable
sclrool districts to pool funds for investment in instrurnents authorized by Section 440.1 of the Pennsylvania
Sclrool Code of 1949, as amended. PLGIT insures that it will not place deposits with any single issuing
institLltion if the largest participant's pro rata slrare of such deposits exceeds insurançe limits unless such
deposits are collateralized as prescribed by Act 72 of the Cornrnonwealth of Pennsylvania. These funds have
the chal'acteristics ofopen-end r¡utual funds and are not subject to credit risk classification.
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Cash

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to
it. The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk, however the District's deposits in excess of the
FDIC limit are collateralized in accordance with the Pennsylvania Security for Public Deposit Act. As of June
30,2073, $1,387,365 of the District's bank balance of $1,637,366 was exposed to custodial risk as:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 0
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution 0

Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank's trust department
not in the District's name

Total

Reconciliation to Financial Statements

Uninsured amount above
Plus: Insured amount
Plus: Deposits in transit
Less: Outstanding checks
Carrying amount - bank balances
Plus: Petty cash

Pooled cash equivalents
Total cash per financial statements

Investments

As of June 30,2013, the District had the following investments:

Maturit)¡

N/A
N/A

1.387.365
$t3323é5

$ I ,3 87,365
250,001

2,107
( 149.858)

1,489,615
300

1.658.266

$3J48-L&l

Fair Value

sl,401 ,087
251.179

[1,6582é_6

Investrnent

PA School District Liquid Asset Fund
PA Local Government Investment Trust

Total

Interest Rate Risk

PA Local Governlnent Trust
PA School District Liquid Asset Fund

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing
its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

The District has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices to certain credit ratings. As of
June 30, 2013, the District's investments were rated as:

Tnvestmenf Standard & Poor's
AAAm
AAAm
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Concentration of Credit Risl<

The Distlict places no limit on the amount the District rnay invest in any one issuer.

Custodial Credit Risl<

For an investmetrt, custodial credit lisk is the risk that, in the event of the faih.rre of the countelparty, the District
will not be able to l'ecover the value of its investnrents or collateral seculity that are in possession of an outsicle
paffy, The District has no investment subject to custodial credit risk.

Reconciliation to Financial Statements

'Iotal investrnents above
Less: Deposits in iuvestment pool considered cash equivalents
'Iotal investments per financial statelnellts

July I

July l -August31
SeptemberI-October31
November I-December3l
January 15

$ 1,6s8,266
(.1.6s8.266)

$-___-_o

4. Real Estate 'Iaxes

Iìeal estate taxes fot' the School District are collected llom the Township of Stonycreel< and the Boroughs of
Indian Lal<e and Shanksville. The tax on real estate for public school purposes for fiscal 20 l3 was 34.81 rnills
($34.81 per $1,000 of assessed valuation) as levied by tlre Board. Assessed valuations ($95,820,725) of
property are determined by Sornerset County and the elected tax collectors are responsible for collection. The
schedule for real estate taxes levied for each lìscal vear is as follows:

- Levy Date
- 2%o Discount Period
- Face Payment Period
- 5o/o Penalty Period
- Lien Date

5. Taxes Receivable

The elected tax collectors at'e required to return any uncollected real estate taxes to the county's tax claim
bureau by January 15. It has beetr detellnined the amount of outstanding taxes as of June 30,2013 is $515,522.
The School l)istrict, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, recognized the delinquent and unpaid taxes receivable. An allowance for uncollectible taxes was not
established by the administration. A poltion of the amount estimated to be collectible which was tneasurable
and available within 60 days was recognized as revenue and the balance deferred in the fund financial
statements.
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Uncollected taxes for the year ended June 30,2013:

Delinquent Real Estate
Interim Rea[ Estate
Realty Transfer'l'ax
Earnecl Incorne Taxes

Uncollected'l'axes Rccognized
as Revenue (received within 60 days)

Real Estate Tax Deferred

l'otal Taxes Receivable

$ 2t,480
874

3,660
't ,411

33,425

482^097

$J r,5.522

(\. Deferred Revenues

Defert'ed revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. On
the fund financial statements, general fund deferred revenues of 5482,097 l'epresents deferred leal estate taxes at
June 30,2013. Deferred revenues in the food service fund ($4,869) represent credits on student cafeteria
accounts (52,144) and donated commodities inventory on hand (52,125) at June 30,2013.

7. Due From C)ther Governme nts

Amounts due 1ì'om other governments represent receivables for levenues earned by the School District or
collections rnade by another governrnental unit on behalf of the School District. At June 30, 2013, the
followrng arnounts al'e due froln other governmental units:

Due Frour General F'und Proprietar)¡ Fund

Federal
State
I-ocal

$ 94,104
61,340
63.851

szJ9'',2.9_5

$7,726
143

0

$=9.-4ég
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8. Ca¡rital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal yeal ended June 30,2013, was as follows:

Beginning
Balance

24J92

40,492

840,029

9,933,543

r,030,934

10,804,506

524,356
3,904,221

792,446

5,221,029

5,583,411

s 5,623,969

s 234,542

234,542

212,585

212,585

g____a2:7

Additions
Ending
Balance

0

0

$0
(15,700)

(15,700)

0

0

15,700

I 5,700

s 24,792

0

3,17 5

0

27,258

30,433

24,792

843,204
8,933,543

1,013,892

I 0,850,63 9

566,525

4,164,166

866,446

5,591 ,137

42,.169

259,939

74,000

376,108

0

0

0

(345,675) 15,700 5,253,502

$]11If1Ð 9__t2132e!

Transfers/
Deductions

Goverumental Activities
Capital assets, l.ìot being depreciated:

I-and

Collstruction in progress

Total capital assets, not lreing depleciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Site in.rprovenrents

Buildings and irnplovements

Furniture and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

I-ess acoumulated depreciation:
Site irnprovements

Buildings and irnprovernents

Furniture and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

'lotal capital assets, being depleciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

lÌusiness-Typc Activities
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Equiprnent

Total capital assets, being depreciated

I-ess accurnu lated depreciation:

Iiquipment
'l'otal accumu lated depreciation

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/prograllrs of the prirnary governrnent as follows:

5,066

5,066

$__lqp{o

s220,400
31,969
51,921
36,482
22,566

6.170

sr4".Lag

s 234,542

234,542

211,651

211,651

s____t!j2r

Governrnental Activities:
Instruction
lnstruction support
Adnlinistration and fi nance
Operation and rnaintenance of plant
PLrpiI tlansportation
Studeut activities

Total depreciation expense - governrrental activities
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9. Deferred Bond costs

Deferred bond costs include bond expenses on the valious Distl'ict bond issues as presented
statenlents. These costs ale amortized over the life of the respective bond issues,

Balance
July 1.2012
$206,3 88

Ø9304)
$Js¿g&4

Additions
$o
(26.651)

$@6"6J1)

Deletions

in the financial

Balance
June 30.2013

$206,3I I
(7 5.955)

$11.0,,€å

$0
0

$!

Bond costs
Less: accumulated arnortization

Total

I0, Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Descliption

The District contributes to a governlnental cost-sharing rnultiple-ernployel defìned benefit pension plan
administered by Pennsylvania Public School Ernployee's Retilement Systenr (PSERS). Benefit provisions of
the plan are established Lrnder the provisions of the Pennsylvania Public School Ernployees' Retirement Code
(the Code) aud rnay be amended by an act of the Pennsylvania State Legislature. The plan provides retirement
and disability, legislatively rnandated ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments, and healthcare insulance premium
assistance to qualifying annuitants. It also provides for refunds of a mernber's accumulated contribution upon
terlnination of a menrber's elnployrnent in the public school sector. PSERS issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statelnerlts for the plan. T'hat report may be obtained by writing to Diane J, Weft,
OfÏce of Financial Managelrent, Public School Employees'Retirement System,5 N.5th Street, Iìarrisburg, PA,
17101-1905. This report is also available on the publications section of the PSERS website at
www,psers.state. pa. us.

Flurdins Policv

The contribution policy is set by the Code and requires contributions by active mernbers, employers, and the
Comrnonwealth.

Contribution rates:

Mernbel contributions -

Active nretnbers who.joirred PSERS prior to July 22, 1983, contribute af 5.25o/o (Membershrp
CIass 'f-C) or at 6.50%o (Mernbership Class 

.l--D) 
of the mernber's qr.ralifying compensation.

Menrbers who joined PSERS on or after luly 22, 1983, and who wele active or inactive as of July
1,2001, contribute aT.6.25o/o (Mernbership Class 1'-C) or atl.50o/o (Mernbership Class'l--D) of the
tnember's quali[ring compensation.

Merrrbers who joined PSERS after June 30, 2001 and before July l, 20 11, contlibute af 7.50Yo
(autorrratic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and for rnembers who elected Class T-D
tnembership, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or afterJanuary 1,2002.
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Merrrbers who joined PSERS after June 30,201l, autornatically contribute at the Membership
Class T-E rate of 7.50o/o(base late) of the member's qualifying compensation. All new hires after
June 30, 2011, who elect Class T-F uretlbership, contribute af 10.30%o (base rate) of the mernber's
qualifying cornpensation. Membership Class T-E and Class T-F are affected by a "shared risl<"
provisiou in Act 120 of 2010 that in future fiscal years could cause the Membership Class T-E
contribution rate to fluctuate between 7.50% and 9.50%o and Membership Class T-F contribution
rate could fluctuate between 10.30% and 12.30%o.

Employer contributions - The contribution requir"ed of participating employers is based on an actuarial
valuation and is expressed as a percelltage of annual covered payroll during the period for which the amount is
deterrnined. Before July 1, 1995, the school district and the Cornmonwealth shared the employer contribution
rate equally. Since July i, 1995, the school distlicts are required to pay the entire employer contlibution rate
and are reimbursed by the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the Commonwealth's shale as detelmined by
the market value/personal incorrre aid ratio (as defined tn Act29 of 1994), which is at least one-half of the total
employer rate, Fol the fìscal year ended June 30,2013, the rate of the employer's contribution was 12.36
percent of covered payroll. The 1 2.36 percent late is cornposed of'a pension contribution rate of I 1 .50 percent
for pension benefìts and 0.86 perçent for healthcare insurance premium assistance. Shanksville-Stonycreek
School District's contributions to PSERS for the years ending June 30, 2013,2012 and 20 I I were $298,130,
5211,497, and $148,675, respectively. Those amounts are equal to the required contribution for each year.

Post-employment Healthcare Iìenefits

The Public School Ernployees' Retirement System (PSERS) provides a health insurance premium assistance
program (plernium assistance), a post-employment healthcare plan as deflrned in the Public School Employees'
Retirement Code and arnended by A.ct29. The prograrn is available to all eligible annuitants who elect to
pafticipate. Under this program, an ernployer contribution l'ate for premium assistance was established to
provide reserves in the Health lnsurance Account that are sufficient for the payment of premium assistance
benefits.

Participating eligible annuitants are entitled to receive premiurn assistance paylnents equal to the lesser of $100
per month ol their rnonthly insurance premiurn. In order to leceive prerniurn assistance, eligible annuitauts
must obtain their health insurance through their ernployer or the Systern's Health Options Proglarn (llOP), in
which the systern acts as a conduit between the insurance cornpanies and the eligible annuitant.

Postemployment Benefits

Frour an accrual accounting perspective, the cost of posternployment healthcare benefits, like the cost of
pension benefits, should be associated with the periods in which the cost occurs, rather than in the future year
when it will be paid. In adopting the requirernents of GASII Statement No. 45 during the year ended June 30,
2010, the District recognizes the cost of posternployrnent healthcare in the year when employee services are

received, reports the accur.nulated liability from prior years, and provides inforuration useful in assessing
potential demands on the District's future cash flows. Because the District adopted the requirernents of G,A,SB

Staternent No. 45 prospectively, recognition of the liability accumulated fi'om prior years will be phased in over
I 5 years, commencing wrth the 2010 liability.

Plan Description

The District provides continuation of medical (PPO) and pharrnacy benefits to ernployees who retire from the
Distlict.

12.
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Eligibility

Age and service requiretlents fot' retirement vary by group as shown below. No benefits are provided upon
termination of ernploynrent if retirer¡ent conditions are not rnet at tennination. No benefits are provided to
snrviving dependents upon death if employee has not retired.

Teachers: Eligibility for PSERS retirenrent (superannuation or early
retirernent provisions), including at least l5 years with the
Shanksville-Stonycreek School District. Otherwise, eligible
to purchase coverage upon retirement after rneeting the
requirements of Act I 10/43.

Eligibility for PSERS retirement (superannuation or early
retirement provisions), including at least l5 years with the
Shanksville-Stonycreek School District. Otherwise, eligible
to pulchase coverage upon retirernent after meeting the
requirements of Act I l0/43.

Support Staff: Eligible to purchase Çoverage uporl retirenrent after
cornpleting l5 years of District service or meeting the
requirernents of Act I 10/43.

Duration of Llealthcare Benefits

Teachers: Retiree coverage continues until age 65, death or
qualification for Medicare if earlier. Spouse coverage
continues until age 65, death, qualification for Medicare, or
cessation of retiree covelage if earlier. Surviving spouses
receive the remaining District incentive, if any.

Retiree çoverage continues until age 65, or death or
qualification for Medicale if earlier'. Spouse coverage
continues until age 65, death, qualification for Medicare, or
cessation of retiree covel'age if earlier. Surviving spouses
receive the renaining District incentive, if any.

Suppolt Staff: Retiree coverage continues until age 65, or death or
qualification fol Medicale if eallier. Spouse coverage
continues until age 65, death, qualification for Medicale, or
cessation ol'retiree coverage if eallier.

Participant Contri butions

Teachers: Under the District incentive the retiree rernits the PSERS
prerniurn assistance arnount. The District provides an

incentive amount of up to $6,000 annually for up to 6 years.
The retiree and spouse are responsible for any additional
premium anlounts. Prior letilees have a $4,500 or $6,500
incentive benefìt, depending on date of retirenrent. Under
Act I I 0143 tl'te retiree and/or spouse pay the full prerniLrm
arrrount.

Adrninistrators:

Administrators:
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Adurinistrators: Under the District incentive the retiree relnits the PSERS
prerniurn assistance amount. The Distlict plovides an

incentive alxount of up to $6,500 annually for up to 6 years.
The retiree and spouse are responsible for any additional
plemiurn arnounts. Under Act 110143 the retiree and/or
spouse pay the full premium alnount.

Support Staff: Retiree and/or spouse pay the full premium amount.

All contracts with the District's union ernployees will be renegotiated at various times in the future and, thus,
costs and benefÌts are subject to change.

OPIIB benefits at'e administered by District pelsonnel. No separate financial statements are issued.

The number of pafticipants as of July 1,2012, the effective date of the biennial OPEB valuation, f'ollows. Thele
have been no significant chauges in the number covered or the type ofcoverage since that date,

District

Active employees 44

Retired employees 6

Spouses of retired employees I

Total

Funding Polic)¡

The District currently pays for postenrployment health cale benefits ol1 a pay-as-you-go basis, and these
financial statements assulne that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

Annua I Other Postempleylltc¡!_lJenc]fil_lQeg!

For tlre fìscal year ended June 30,2013, the District's annual OPEB cost (i.e., expense) of $74,136 is equal to
the Annual Required Contribution. Considering the District's annual OPEB cost as well as the payment of
current health insurance premiurns, which totaled $34,600, the result was alì increase in the District's Net OPEB
Obligation of $39,536 for the year ended June 30,2013.

Actuarial Accrued I-iability (AAL)

Retired employees

Active ernployees

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability ([JAAL)

Norural Çost at beginning ofyear

Atnortization factor based on l5 years

Annual covered payloll

U^AI- as %o of covcred payloll

District

$ I 17,100

390,600

507.100

$ 26,600

9.9653

To be determined

To be determined
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ARC Norrnal Cost

Amortization of UAAL

Annual required contribution (ARC)

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation

Adjustrnent to ARC

Annual OPEB cost (expense)

Contribution for the fiscal year

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation

Net OPEB Obligation June 30,2012

Net OPEB Obligation June 30,2013

Percent ofannual OPEB cost contributed

The District's annual OPEB
obligation ofthe fiscal years

cost, the pel'celltage o1'annual OPEB cost
ending June 30, 2013,2012 and 201 I for

contributed to the plan and the
the benefits were as follows:

net OPEB

Year'

Ended

Annual
OPEB Cost

Percentage of
OPEB Cost

Contributed
Net OPEB

Oblisation

613012013 $ "t4,136 46.7Yo $ 94,816

613012012 $ 89,853 5s.8% $ 55,280

6t30t2011 $ 88.062 87.9% $ rs,s27

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections ofbenefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
lry the ernployer and plan members) and include the types of benefits plovided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. Most
included coverages are "col.nnlLn'rity-rated" and annual premiurns for conrmunity-rated coverages wel'e used as a
proxy for claims costs without age adjustrnent. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over
15 years on a closed level dollar basis, beginning in fiscal year'2009-10,

The projection of future benefits for an ongoing plan involves estirnates of the value of reported amounts and
asslturptiotrs about the probability of ocçurrence of futule events far into the future. Actuarially cletermined
alrounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are cornpared with past expectations and new
estilnates are made about the future. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects ofshort-tenn volatility in actuarial acclued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term pelspective of the calculations.
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ln the July 1,2012 actuarial valuation, the liabilities were computed using the pro.jected unit credit rnethod and
closed level dollar amortizatiott. 'lhe actuarial assun.rptions utilized a3.25o/" discount rate. Because the plan is
unfunded, l'ef'erence to the general assets, which are short-telrn in natule (such as lnol'ìey market funds), was
consideled in the selection of the 3.25%ot'ate. The valuatiorl assumes al.9o/" healthcale cost trend increase fol'
fiscaì year 2013-14, reduced by decrernents to a l'ate of 5.3Yoby 2017.

13. Long-Tcrm Obligations

Duringthe fìscal year ended June 30,20 13, general long-term obìigations changed as lollows:

Beginning of year

Debt proceeds

Principal retirement

Changes in compensated absences

End of year'

Less: Current portion
Less: Original issue discount, net

Add: Original issue prerniurn, net

Long-tenrr liabi I ities

June 30

2014
2015
2016
2017

201 8

2019-2020

Bonds

Payable

$ s,29s,000
0

(575,000)

4,720,ooo
(620,000)

(47,s42)
)) ?'7Q

S 4,U?4W

Other

Long-telrn
Financing

$ 448,36',7

0

(29,214)

0

419,153
(29,02t)

0

0

Conrpensated

Absences

Total General

Long-term
Debt

$ 107,033

0

0

28,900

135,933
( r s,616)

0

0

$ s,850,400

0

(604,214)

28,900

5,275,086
(664,631)
(41,s42)
)) ?1q

$ 4J8i286$ 390,132 $ 120,317

The future annual payments requiled to arnortize all outstanding debt and obligations, except for the
cornpensated absences and the Technology Center debt, as of June 30,2013, including total interest payments
ale as follows:

Year Ended General Obligation Bonds

lnterest

$ rr1901
100,545

85,525

70,093

53,573

45,860

$16ei21

Principal

$ 620,000

640,000

65s,000
670,000

690,000

t,445,000

q44rqq

$ 733,901

140,545
140,s2s

740,093

7 43 ,513
1,490,860

ï_Ð32421

Total
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General Obligation Bonds. Series of 2012

The District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012, dated March 15,2072, in the principal amount of
$1,535,000. The proceeds of the bonds were used to advance refund the District's General Obligation Bonds,
Series of2006 ($1,485,000) and to pay all costs incidental to the issuance ofthese bonds. The present value of
the net economic gain the School District realized as a result of the advance refunding of the Series of 2006
bonds is $53,7 14. The bonds bear interest rates ranging ÍÌom 0.35% to 1.5o/o with annual principal maturities
frorn September 2012 through September 2017. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2013 was $1,315,000.

General Obligation Bonds. Series of 2011

The District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2011, dated June 15,2011, in the principal amount of
$1,110,000. The proceeds of the bonds were used to advance refund the District's General Obligation Bonds,
Series of2001 ($1,015,000) and to pay all costs incidental to the issuance ofthese bonds, The present value of
the net economic gain the School District realized as a result of the advance refunding of the Series of 2001

bonds is $55,480. The bonds bear interestrates ranging from 2.80% to3.15%o with annual principal maturities
from September 2012 through Septeurber 2019. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2013 was $1,100,000.

General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2009

The District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2009, dated March 1,2009, in the principal amount of
$3,565,000. The proceeds of the bonds were used to advance refund the District's General Obligation Bonds,

Series of 2002 and to pay all costs incidental to the issuance of these bonds, The bonds bear interest rates

ranging from 2,0Yo to 3.3Yo with annual principal maturities from September 2009 through September 2018.

The balance outstanding at June 30,2013 was $2,305,000.

Other Long-Term Financing: Somerset County Technology Center

Other long-term liabilities at June 30,2013 include Shanksville-Stonycreek School District's estimated share of
the Series of 2011 General Obligation Note, related to the area vocational-technical school, issued in the
principal amount of $4,825,000. The proceeds of the note were used to refinance the Series 2004 State Public
School Building Authority Bonds. This debt service is shared by eight surounding school districts including
Shanksvil le-Stonycreek School District.

The Selies of 20l1Note has a scheduled maturity of May 15,2025. Interest is payable semi-annually on May
15tl'and November l5rl', comrnencing on November 15,2011.

Shanksville-Stonycreek School District's prorated share of the scheduled debt service payments fluctuates
based on the estimated market value of the real estate within the District. The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
establishes the anllual debt allocation rate. Because ofthe fluctuating nature ofthe allocation rate, no schedule
of future debt payrnents is presented. However, the District did recognize an estimated current ($29,021) and

long-term ($390,132) liability for their estimated share of the future debt service principal payments. These

estimates are based on the Districl's2012-2013 debt allocation rate of 10.07%. Accordingly, the Shanksville-
Stonycreek School District's share ofthe balance outstanding at June 30,2013 is $419,153.
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Acculnulated ComÞensated Absences

In accordance with accounting principles generally acceptecl in the United States of America, the District
accrues liabilities for oompensated absences. Cornpensated absences reflect the potential cos{ of sick leave
ealned by employees as of June 30,20 13. The School District allows all employees to accumulate their unused
sick leave. Upon retirenrent, employees shall receive separation benefits based upon the total days of unused
sick leave accurnulated while in the ernploy of Shanksville-Stonycreel< School Distlict at the rate of S50 pel day
for professional staff up to a rnaximunr of 120 days and S15 pel day for administrators and suppolt staff up to a

rnaximurn of 100 days.

The School District has computed a total liability of $135,933 at June 30,2013 with $133,373 reflected in the
General Fund and $2,560 reflected in the proprietaly fund. Due to the nature of the obligation for accrued
separation benefits, annual requirements to amoftize such obligations are not determinable and have not been
presented.

General obligation bonds issued fol governrnental activity purposes are liquidated by the debt service fund.
Long-terrn financing agreernents entered into for governmental activity purposes are liquidated by the general
fund. Compensated abserlces liabilities for governmental activities will be paid by the general fund, whereas
those related to business-type activities willbe paid by the ploprietary fund.

14. O¡lerating Leases

The School District entered into noncancellable operating leases fol copiers and a postage rneter. Rental
expenditures under all operating lease agleements were Sl2,l17. Future rninirnum lental payments required
undel operating leases that have renraining lease tenns as ofJune 30 are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30,

2014
2015
2016
2011
2018

Total minirnum payments required

15. Interfund Transactions

Payment
s12,624

12,624
12,251
I 1,133
4.639

.$53.27 I

Tlre following is a surnmary of interfund receivables and payables at June 30,2013:

General Fund (Major F-und)

Enterprise Fund * Food Service (Majol Fund)
Capital Projects Fund (Non-Major Fund)

Receivables
$ 14,283

0

0

$_14283

Payables

$0
5,506
8.777

$14283

The School District typically pays ernployees of the Food Service Fund and subsequently charges the Food
Service Fund fol leimbursement in order to assist the fund in providing rneals. The amoullt owed the District
by Food Service at June 30, 20 13 represents surnrner wages.
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ln sonre cases, the General Fund incurs the cost of caprtal expenditures and is later reimbursed for such capital
costs by the Capital Projects fund.

Intelfund transactions duling the year ended June 30,2013 consisted ofthe following:

General Fund (Major Fund)
Debt Service Fund (Major Fund)

General Fund (Major F-und)

Capital Plo.jects Fund (Non-Major Fund)

General Fund (Major Fund)
Enterprise Fund - Food Service (Major Fund)

Total

Transfèr in
$0

684,2s8

0

1,020

0

13.399

s1_64-úa

Transfer out
$684,25I

0

7,020
0

73,399
0

s1_64-611_

'I'he School District pays its debt service out of the Debt Service Fund, thelefore, the General Fund tlansfers
amounts eaclt year to pay the annual debt service. The School Distlict typically transfers funds each year florn
the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund to fund îuture capital improvements. Further, the General Fund
transfers funds to Food Service to assist in subsidizing operating expenditures, as needed.

16. Contingent Liabilities

Grant Programs

The School Dish"ict participates in both state aud federally assisted grant progral¡s. These pl'ograms are subject
to prograrn compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives, The School District is potentially liable
for any expenditures which rnay be disallowed pursuant to the term of these grant programs. Management is
not aware of any rnaterial items of noncornpliance which would result in the disallowance of program
expenditures.

Self-Insurance - Medical Insurance

The School District is participating in the insurance consortiurn with the Bedford-Somerset Consortium to
provide for the medical care for eligible ernployees and their dependents. The consoilium, which administers
the plan, monitors the School's deposit into the school district trust account to be held for the benefits described
above and Highmark Services, the plan administrator', processes and pays the claims. 'lhe consortium limits its
liability by stop-loss insurance coverage. Shanksville-stonycreek School District's liability at June 30,2013,
for unpaid claitns inculred prior to fiscal yeal end is not readily deterrninable. No liability has been recolded
for these claims at June 30,2013, as the Distlict recognizes medical clainr expenses as claitns are paid.

Rish Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft o1, darnage to, and destruction of assets; elrors
and onrissions; and natural disasters. The District has purchased varions insul'auce policies to safeguarcl its
assets fì'om risk of loss. Insurance coverage appears to be consistent with previous years. During the year
ended June 30,2013 and the two previous fiscal years, no settlements exceeded insurance coverage,

17.

18.
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19. Related Party Transactions

Interrnediate Unit Palticipation
'l-he District is a membel'ol'Appalaclria Intelmediate LJnit 8. The District avails itself of various services
provided by this membership including special education, curricululn development, and certain internal service
functions. The total of sel'vices provided to Shanl<sville-stonycreek School District for the year ended June 30,
20 l3 for Appalachia Intenlediate Unit 8 programs amounted to592,514. At June 30,2013, the District had a
balance due from Appalachia IU8 of $7,379 (ovelpayrnent).

Technology Center School Participation
The School District govenìs, with seven other school districts, the Sor.nerset County Technology Center. Each
district is represented ou the Technology Center's school board. Students ofthe Shanksville-Stonycreek School
District have available at the'lechnology Centel'courses and curriculums l'elated to the technical training field.
l'lre District's portion of tuition paylnellts for its students attending the Technology Center for fiscal year2013
arnounted to $290,858.

20. Flcouo¡nic Dependency

Slranl<sville-Stonycreek School District receives approximately 38% of its revenue from the State of
Pennsylvania in the f'onn of state subsidies. Changes in funding levels by the State could have a material effect
on future operations of the District.

21. Nonmone tary Transactions

'lhe Distlict receives one of its federal prograu1 subsidies by means of noncash transfer. The U.S. Department
of AgricLrlture, tl'tt'ough the Pennsylvania Depaltrneut ol' Agriculture, provides food commodities under the
National School Lunch Program. l'hese nonlnonetary commodity items are valued at marl<et values and
recorded as revenue as received, 'lhe total I'ood corrrmodities donated by the federal govet'nment for the fiscal
yeal 201 3 totaled $ I 1,590.

22. Restatement of Net Position

Net position of the governmental activities was restated effective July I , 2012 to con'ect for undelstated long-
term receivables resulting in an incl'ease in net position of $41,698. 'I'his adjustment affects the govemrnent-
wide statenrents onlv.
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In Fu¡rd Balance - Iìudget and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Revenues

Local soul'ces

State sources

Federal sources

Total revenues

Expenditures

Instluction:
Regular progralns

Special programs

Vocational education progralns

Other instluctional plograms
Comrnunity/j unior co I lege progralns
Pre-l<indergarten

Support services:

Pupil personnel

Instructional staff
Adrninistration
Pupil health

Business

Operation and maintenance of plant
Student transportatioll
Other support services

Operation of noninstructional services:
Student activities
Cornrnunity services
Scholarships and awards

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal and intel'est

Total expenditures

Budgeted
Original

s 3,521,283
2,167,92',7

r 30,000

5,825,210

2,gg3,0gg
520,321

306,800

I 3,1 56

6,240

70,942

164,910

421,918
626,070

91,613

161,492

529,768

265,720

5,200

12t,8l3
4,899

2,080

20,800

46,800

Arnounts
Final

s 3,527,283
2,167,927

r 30,000

5,825,210

2,993,098
520,321

306,800

13,1 56

6,240

10,942

164,910

427,919
626,010

91,613

167,482

529,168

265,720

5,200

121 ,8 l3
4,ggg

2,080

20,800

46,800

Actual
(Budgetary

Basis)

$ 3,689,19s

2,346,096
1 45,895

6,181 ,11 6

Variance with Final
Budget Favolable

(Unfavorable)

$ 161 ,912
1 78,1 59

15,895

355,966

2,303,894
445,084
290,858

20,447

3,025
79,255

135,132
1)4 5?)

568,823

85,9 1 4

133,92t
510,189

326,670

3,387

90,807

1,612

3,500

0

44.141

(764,677)
0

689,204

7 5,237

15,942

(7,2e1)

3,215
(8,313)

29,778
103,386

57,247

5,699
33,561

19,579

(60,950)

I ,813

3 1,006

3,276
(1,420)

20,800

6,385,619 6,385,619 5,371,191

2,659

1,014,428

Excess (deficiency) ofreve'ues over expenditures (560,409) (560,409) g09,9g5 1,370,394

Other financing sources (uses)

Tlansfers out

Budgetary t'eserve

Total other fìnancing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning ofyear

Irund balance, end ofyear

I,489,7 t7

See accompanying notes to basic fìnancial staten.ìents.

54

(832,000) (832,000)
(52,000) (s2,000)

(884,000) (884,000)

(1,444,409) (1,444,409)

2,761,000 2,761,000

q_!t!J2r q__Lt_ryJ91

(164,617)

45,308

t19.323

2,694,341 (66,659)

$_ ]fi2é!2 $___1läÆg

61,323
52,000



KOTZAN CPA6L
ASSOCIATES, P.C.
CuRnpruo Pu¡uc AccouNraNrs &. BusrNgss CoNSULTANTS

lìe¡rort on Intcrnal Control over Financial Reporting and on Conrpliance
and Other Mattcrs Based on an Audit of Financial Statemcnts Performed in

Accordance with Governnrcnl Autlif ittg Slandards

Inde¡rendent Auditors' Reporl

To the Members of the Board
Shanksville-Stonycreek School Distlict
P.O .Box 128

1325 Cornerstone Road
Shanksville, Pennsylvania I 5560-0 128

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each rnajor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Shanksville-stonycreek School District as of and
for tlre year ended June 30, 2013 and the lelated notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Shanksville-Stonycreek School District's basic financial statemeuts, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 3,2014.

Intcrnal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Shanksville-Stonycreek School
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness ofShanksville-Stonycreek School District's internal control.

A deficiency in inlernal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing theil assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstaterneltts on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a rnaterial weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that rnight be material weaknesses or signifrcant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identifu any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identihed.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Shanksville-Stonycreek School District's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts ancl grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on

Budfield Street Professional tsuilding . S:+ g,ilneld Street . Suite 100 . Johnstown, PA 75904
81,4-269-4912' Fax: 81,4-266-9577

r.lr¡r¡¡. kotzancpa. com

Dennis P. Kotzan, CPA, CFF
BrendaA. Pawlowski, CPA, CFE

IGmberlyA. Dorchak, CPA, CGFM

MliMr]rìr AICPA. PICPA



the detennination of financial statement amounts. l-lowever, providing an opinion on conrplialrce with those
provisions was not an objectii,e of our audit and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The lesults of our
tests disclosed no instauces of rroncompliance ol' other lnatters that are required to be reported under Governntent
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Iìeport

The pulpose of this leport is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and cornpliance and the
results of that testittg, aud uot to provide an opinion on the efl'ectiveness of the entity's intel'nal contlol or on
conrpliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perf'ormed in accordance with Gotternntent Aucliting
Stancllrds in considering the entity's internal control and conrpliance, Accordingly, this colnrnunication is not
suitable for any other purpose,

t - 
t---)r

}("t .o^ÐCPÀr O¡'rscr.çxkÀ. l' \-'
rotz#rcPR & Associates, P.C.
Johnstown, Pennsylvania
Januar"y 3,2014
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